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By Rikki Cason and Elaine Harrigan
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(Above) Wiliam Rand Kenan Jr.
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(Right) Artist's conceptual sketch of
Lockport’s Kenan Arena by Cannon,
Thiele, Betz, Cannon, Shackleton &
FitzGerald, ca. 1967.

COURTESY KENAN CENTER

44




Raﬁd Kenan Jr.
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William Rand Kenan Jr., or “Will”
as he is often referred to in his
biography, Across Fortune’s Tracks by
William E. Campbell, was born in
Wilmington, NC, on April 30, 1872.
He was the son of a prominent North
Carolina family with deep connec-
tions to the University of North
Carolina at Chapel Hill, and was
educated as a scientist and engineer.
While at UNC, he participated in the
discovery of calcium carbide, which
is the basis for the manufacture of
acetylene.

Following graduation, he came to
Western New York in 1896 to work
in a supervisory position at the
Philadelphia-based Acetylene Light,
Heat and Power Company in Niagara
Falls, which was later to become
Union Carbide. His job consisted of
supervising workers, testing the car-
bide in the furnaces for lime and coke
analysis, payroll and managing ship-
ments of lime and coke. He worked
six days a week, 10 hours a day for the
grand sum of $25 a week.

It was around the turn of the 20th
century when Kenan’s life took a dif-
ferent course, thanks to his future
brother-in-law, Henry M. Flagler.

A wealthy industrialist, Flagler was a
partner in Standard Oil with John D.
Rockefeller, and would marry Kenan’s
sister Mary Lily Kenan in 1901. She
became Flagler’s third wife.

Will moved to Lockport in 1900,
when Flagler, who had relatives in the
area, got him a job at Traders’ Paper
Company. Flagler would later hire
Kenan to build a power plant for his
hotel, The Breakers, in Palm Beach,
FL, and to serve as construction engi-
neer for many of Flagler’s Florida
properties. This bond, which was
both professional and personal, re-
sulted in a significant change of for-
tune for the Kenan family following
Flagler’s death in 1913. His vast estate
that included stocks, real estate and
railways was left to his widow, Mary
Lily. When she subsequently died in
1917 without heirs, the millions that
made up the Flagler fortune were left
to brother William and Mary Lily’s
two surviving sisters. A 1965 story
published in the Lockport Union-Sun
& Journal, just one month before
Kenan’s death, later revealed that at
one point Kenan, Flagler and Mary
Lily owned approximately one-cighth
of the land area in the state of Florida.

Shortly after William’s move to
Lockport, he met his future wife

William Kenan’s fortunes changed —
literally — when industrialist Henry Flagler
(shown above) married his sister and
offered Kenan a job in his organization.
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Alice Pomroy. At the time, he was
living at 80 Genesee Street and she
lived at 78 Genesee Street. Though
she lived next door to him, the two
actually became acquainted in the
fall of 1901 when they were both vis-
iting Flagler in New York City. The
two married in the spring of 1904.
According to a Kenan Center bro-
chure published in 1985, Kenan and

his bride, who was several years his
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William and Alice Kenan purchased this Italianate-style house at 433 Locust Street in Lockport's
Uppertown in March 1912. After extensive renovations, they would move into the house a

year later.

senior, “enjoyed a most agreeable rela-
tionship until her death in 1947 In
March 1912, they purchased an Italianate-
style house at 433 Locust Street in
Uppertown, built by wealthy shipper
George W. Rogers, for the sum of
$18,500.

Extensive remodeling took place
during the first year of their owner-
ship. Kenan, an engineer at heart, partic-
ipated in the renovation himself. In
his memoirs, Incidents Along the Way,
he writes that he started work on the
home almost immediately. “I did not
have any architect or contractor, but
simply employed several carpenters, two
plumbers and helpers, and several
painters,” he said. The changes, repairs
and modernizing — including hangings,
carpets and furniture — cost $14,510.95.

Henry Flagler died the same year the
Kenans actually moved into their remod-
eled home on Locust Street. William
was made a trustee of the estate, later
assuming control of many of Flagler’s
companies. Upon his death in 1965, he
was chairman of the Flagler Systems that
operated hotels, resorts, land companies
and the P&O Steamship line, while also
serving locally as chairman of the West-
ern Block Company. At the age of 85,
William was described as “the only
millionaire to go to work at 7:00 a.m.”
At one time or another, he served as
executive of 28 different companies.
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In 1963, an aging Kenan considered
what would happen to his home and
property upon his death. He instructed
his close friend and secretary Schuyler
Beattie to consult with Dr. W. James
Westhafer, the new pastor of the First
Presbyterian Church, to determine the
church’s interest in using the 24 acres of
land surrounding his home for some

“humanitarian” purpose. Westhafer had
come to know the elderly Kenan through
monthly visits and shared with him an
interest in science.

In a 1966 report presented to the First
Presbyterian congregation, Westhafer
summarized the discussions that fol-
lowed. The church, he stated, did, in
fact, have use for the property. Some
possibilities included: a potential church
site; a center to serve the community-
at-large for recreation and education; an
arts and cultural center; housing for
senior citizens and a swimming pool.

After a series of studies were con-
ducted, it was determined that a recre-
ational center would ultimately best serve
the needs of the community. Buffalo
architect William Shelgren prepared a
plan that was submitted to Mr. Kenan in
September 1964 for his approval. Along
with his blessing, Mr. Kenan made a gift
of $472,000 with the understanding that
the congregation would raise an additional
$100,000 to erect the facility. An addi-
tional grant of $500,000 was approved by
the trustees of Mr. Kenan’s estate at the
end of 1965, six months after his passing
in July.

Plans for the actual building began
almost immediately. Dr. Westhafer’s wife,
Dorothy, along with Grace Lewis, wife
of the chairman of building committee,
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This draft plan was created by Buffalo architectural firm Shelgren, Patterson, and Marzec in
1964. Presented to Mr. Kenan, it shows a community building, senior housing and open activity

areas. The plan, at the time, did not include the house.
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